
1 
 

 

TOWN OF CAROLINA SHORES 

  ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION 

MEETING MINUTES 
October 10, 2019 

1:30 p.m. 

 

 

 

Mayor Joyce Dunn called the October 10, 2019 Economic Development Commission meeting 
to order at 1:30 p.m. Commissioners present: Bill Brennan, Gere Dale, Greg Davis and Beverly 
Mayhew. Also, present: Jon Mendenhall, Town Administrator and Nicole L. Hewett, Town Clerk 
 
Absent:  Commissioner Joseph J. Przywara 
 

Approval of Minutes: 

 

COMMISSIONER DAVIS MADE A MOTION TO APPROVE THE ECONOMIC 
DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES OF JULY 11, 2019. 
COMMISSIONER BRENNAN SECONDED THE MOTION.  MAYOR DUNN 
CALLED FOR A VOTE AND MOTION CARRIED BY UNANIMOUS VOTE. 

 
Administrative Reports: 

 

Mr. Mendenhall said he does not have a staff report. 
 
Commissioner Brennan said it has been three months since the EDC has met. Mr. Mendenhall said it 
looks like the Lucky 7 project is moving forward and it will have a submittal to you with about 500 
homes probably within 35-40 days. Mr. Mendenhall said of course that is on Shingletree Road.  
Commissioner Brennan asked if we want to call it “7”. Mr. Mendenhall said your 7th, being 
Landmark, is going to annex itself into the Lighthouse Cove HOA. Mr. Mendenhall said that HOA 
has asked if they could join together. Mr. Mendenhall said it would be financially better for Phase 1 
at Lighthouse Cove and it would be more contiguous. Mr. Mendenhall said they are looking at 
whether they want to annex into there. Mayor Dunn asked where this is geographically located. 
Commissioner Davis said it is the second half of Lighthouse Cove. Commissioner Brennan said the 
Landmark people can’t get out without going through Lighthouse Cove. Mr. Mendenhall said they 
are looking at doing that and that would preclude them from being a separate subdivision. Mr. 
Mendenhall said the reason behind all that is financial, primarily. Mr. Mendenhall said the big 
question is that they want to assume the Deed of Restrictions for Lighthouse Cove or do they want 
to write new Deeds of Restrictions and use their voting block to clean up whatever is out there. Mr. 
Mendenhall said they have not done the analysis yet so what would be better. Commissioner 
Brennan said who else could vote other than the developer because there is no one living there. 
Commissioner Davis said there would be six votes for every piece of property, just like D.R. Horton 
did. Mayor Dunn said it depends on what the current owners want. Mr. Mendenhall said they want it 
because of the income. Commissioner Davis said it would be in their best interest. Mr. Mendenhall 
said we have another subdivision that has some interest on Thomasboro Road. Mr. Mendenhall said 
he doesn’t have a lot of details yet. Mr. Mendenhall said it would be about 300 units, plus or minus. 
Mr. Mendenhall said it would be in the corporate limits. Mr. Mendenhall said you could be looking 
at 700 units coming online. Mr. Mendenhall said that is all he has. Mayor Dunn asked about the 
billboard. Mr. Mendenhall said it has been ordered but has not been installed. Mr. Mendenhall said it 
just has to be schedule to be installed. Mayor Dunn said there was a suggestion for the slogan on the 



2 
 

billboard. Commissioner Brennan said the suggested slogan was “Gateway to North Carolina”. Mr. 
Mendenhall asked the EDC if they wanted to use that. Mayor Dunn said it sounds magical. 
Commissioner Brennan said no other town has anything like that. Mr. Mendenhall said every time 
one is produced it is $500.00. Commissioner Davis said even if it gets damaged and Mr. Mendenhall 
said that is correct. Commissioner Davis asked if they are taking down the trees. Mr. Mendenhall 
said yes. Mr. Mendenhall said they talked about taking some trees down and planting some back. It 
was the consensus of the EDC if they have already completed the sign, leave it for now and re-do it 
the next time. There was discussion on crews taking down all the billboard signs in the Myrtle 
Beach area before the storm and then putting them all back up. Commissioner Davis said we pay 
monthly; he would have thought they would just put it back up. Mr. Mendenhall said he thinks they 
were waiting on us to order it. Commissioner Davis asked if we paid rent for that month.  Mr. 
Mendenhall said we pay rent in advance. Commissioner Davis said okay, we paid rent for a month 
that it wasn’t up. Commissioner Davis said the next time don’t wait for us; call the next day and say 
we want it replaced immediately or we’re not paying rent for the next quarter, that’s ridiculous. 
Commissioner Mayhew said what if you were paying rent on that billboard and you weren’t here 
locally to see it. Commissioner Mayhew asked about Arbor Landing. Mr. Mendenhall said he hasn’t 
heard anything; it has gone very quiet and he wonders if the deal has fallen through. Commissioner 
Davis said there is a saturation in a certain area and that is what probably did it. Commissioner 
Davis said he knows that properties have been for sale and sold in Heather Lakes, they have plotted 
out the properties. Mayor Dunn asked how things were going with the development within the 
development at The Farm. Commissioner Davis said they gave up on that. Commissioner Davis said 
the only thing now is people that have a pool pass, they want to be able to use either pool. 
Commissioner Davis said the people that bought in that section were promised that only they would 
use that pool. Commissioner Davis said that has been going on this whole year. Commissioner 
Davis said originally that was going to be a separate, gated private area and age restricted and that 
totally changed. Commissioner Davis said that the pool at Calabash Lakes is the biggest in the 
Town. Commissioner Davis said the pool at The Farm is the second biggest. Commissioner Davis 
said the pool is pretty big at The Farm but it is weirdly shaped. Commissioner Davis said there is a 
lot of kiddie area. Mayor Dunn said they have a lot of kids in there. Commissioner Davis said he 
thinks the last count was 160 children with 595 homes built already. Commissioner Davis said that 
is what keeps our median age the age that it is. Commissioner Davis said that Calabash Lakes offers 
lawn service in our HOA fees, The Farm does not. Commissioner Davis said The Farm offers cable 
and internet. Commissioner Davis said somebody moving here with a family is going to The Farm. 
Commissioner Davis said that a person 60 or 65 who doesn’t want to cut grass, he is moving to The 
Lakes. Commissioner Davis said that Calabash Lakes looks like a 55 and older community, we’re 
not, we have around 16 children and 900 people now. Commissioner Dale asked what time the bus 
comes in the morning. Commissioner Davis said it only comes to the front. Commissioner Davis 
said the bus used to come all the way in but they don’t anymore. Commissioner Davis said he does 
not know what time the bus comes because it only comes to the front. Commissioner Brennan said 
there is probably a couple of buses and Commissioner Davis said correct. Commissioner Dale said 
we have one bus that comes at 6:25 am and one at 6:40 am. Commissioner Davis said the schools 
are cutting back on driveway pick-ups because of money. Commissioner Davis said it is very 
expensive to do because you have to add buses and runs. Commissioner Davis said cumulative pick-
ups are the way to go if you can pull it off. Commissioner Davis discussed his son’s school and the 
bus system there. Mayor Dunn said now if you are going to be a teacher’s aide, you have to be able 
to drive a bus as well. Mayor Dunn said she subs and there is a woman who starts her day at 6:00 am 
and it ends at 5:00 pm. Commissioner Davis said but she gets breaks.  Commissioner Davis coaches 
are now getting the CDL so they don’t have to hire bus drivers for the extra-curricular activities. 
There was discussion on lighting and the speed limit on Thomasboro as far as the bus stops are 
concerned. Mayor Dunn asked Commissioner Davis how they were coming along with the transition 
over there. Commissioner Davis said slow. Commissioner Davis said most of it is contingent on 
things like getting the roads turned over to the Town, stormwater permit turned over to the Town.  



3 
 

Commissioner Davis said the Transition Committee is going to ask D.R. Horton to do this before 
they leave and D.R. Horton will tell them no. Commissioner Davis said they are not going to give us 
$100,000.00 for things we don’t need or they don’t think we need. Commissioner Davis said the 
A.R.C. was finally turned over this morning. Commissioner Davis said the A.R.C. is only for houses 
that have already been sold, not the ones that are still for sale. 
 

New Business: 

 

None 

 
Public Comment: 
 

None 

 

Closed Session: 

 

None 
 

Adjourn: 
 

COMMISSIONER BRENNAN MADE A MOTION TO ADJOURN THE OCTOBER 10, 2019 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION MEETING AT 1:52 PM. COMMISSIONER 
DAVIS SECONDED THE MOTION. MAYOR DUNN CALLED FOR A VOTE AND 
MOTION CARRIED BY UNANIMOUS VOTE. 

 

 

 
 

Mayor  
 
 
 

Submitted by: 

Nicole L. Hewett, Town Clerk 
 


